
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Licensing Sub Committee Agenda
Friday, 24 January 2020 at 10.00 am
Council Chamber - Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings TN34 3UY

Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance. Members of public are 
advised that they will need to sign in to comply with health and safety legislation.

For further information, please contact Democratic Services on 01424 451484 or email 
democraticservices@hastings.gov.uk 

Page No.

Members of the Licensing Sub Committee to sit on this hearing 
are:

Councillors O’Callaghan, Patmore and Roberts with
Councillor Cox in reserve.

1.  Appointment of Chair for this Meeting

2.  Apologies for absence

3.  Minutes of previous meeting 1 - 4

4.  Declarations of Interest

5.  Notification of Additional Urgent Items

PROCEDURAL NOTE - Licensing Review

6.  Review of Premises licence for Ocean Spice, 43 White Rock, 
Hastings
(Assistant Director, Environment & Place)

7 - 84

7.  Additional urgent items (if any)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

27 SEPTEMBER 2018 
 

LSC. 1 

Present: Councillors Sinden, Roberts, Patmore and O'Callaghan 
 

 
34. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THIS MEETING  
 
In accordance with the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee, the Chief Legal 
Officer invited nominations for the appointment of Chair for the duration of the 
meeting.  Councillor Patmore moved that Councillor Roberts should take the Chair.  
This was seconded by Councillor Sinden. 
 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that Councillor Roberts be appointed as Chair 
for the duration of the meeting. 

 
 
35. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None. 
 
 
36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 
37. NOTIFICATION OF ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS  
 
None. 
 
 
38. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE WITH REPRESENTATIONS:  

EBENEZER'S, 20 NORMAN ROAD, ST. LEONARDS ON SEA  
 
Councillor Roberts set out the procedure that the Sub-Committee would adopt (in 
accordance with Standard Practice). 
 
The Licensing Manager, Mr Brown, presented the report of the Assistant Director of 
Environment and Place in respect of an application made on 9th August for a premises 
licence for Ebenezer’s, 20 Norman Road, St. Leonards on Sea.  
 
The premises does not hold a licence under the Licensing Act 2003 and currently 
operates as a convenience store.   
 
The application requests the following hours: 
 

 To have supply of alcohol for “Off” sales on Monday to Sunday from 09.00hrs to 
20.00hrs. 

 To have opening hours of the premises, Monday to Sunday from 07.00hrs to 
23.00hrs. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

27 SEPTEMBER 2018 
 

LSC. 2 
 

Mr Brown said this is the second application for this premises licence by this applicant.  
The first application was refused by the Licensing Sub-Committee on 23rd April 2018 
for the following reason:- “The applicant had not met the legal test required.  He 
needed to show within his operating schedule that the granting of his application 
would not undermine the Licensing objectives.  He has failed to do so.  Furthermore, 
he did not mention within his oral submission anything about Cumulative Impact.  He 
did say that he understood the Council’s Licensing Policy.  The Committee have no 
confidence that the applicant will uphold the Licensing Objectives”.  
 
Mr Brown explained that within Central St. Leonards there is significant evidence of 
alcohol problems. The matrix in the current licensing policy states that an off licence 
would not be the preferred type of premises. He said the onus is on the applicant to 
demonstrate that his premises will not add to the problems in the Cumulative Impact 
Zone.  Mr Brown stated that applicants seeking a licence in a Saturation Policy area 
are advised to seek legal advice before making an application.  He said that no pre-
application discussion was sought from Officers or information to support the 
application was submitted from the applicant.   
 
It was noted that there was an error in the application for a premises licence form 
(Paragraph L), Hours premises are open to the public.  This should state 07.00hrs to 
23.00hrs not 09.00hrs to 20.00hrs. 
 
Kirstie Rolfe, Licensing Officer, Sussex Police, made her submission on the grounds 
of the ‘Prevention of Crime and Disorder’.  She said their objection was based on the 
applicants past criminal history (see representation letter dated 05.09.18 appended to 
the agenda) and that the applicant had failed again to address the Council’s Special 
Saturation (Cumulative Impact) Policy within the operating schedule.  She said the 
previous application was refused 6 months ago and the applicant’s convictions are not 
spent and will remain so until 2012.  She asked the committee to refuse the 
application.  
 
Mr Ballam, Environmental Protection Officer, said that he had no objection to the 
application, but wished to add a condition regarding delivery times to the licence if 
granted:- “Deliveries to the premises to take place only between the hours of 08:00 
and 18:00 Monday to Friday, 08:00 and 13:00 on Saturday and not on a Sunday or 
Public/Bank Holiday.” 
 
In his submission, Reverend Adelasoye said he had paid someone else to make the 
application, on his behalf, for the premises licence.  He said that he holds a Personal 
Licence and that anyone who works at the premises would be trained and that the 
premises had CCTV installed.  He said he had challenged the investigation by the 
Police and that there was no evidence by Home Office that he had done anything 
wrong.  By his own admission to the law society, he said he was not struck off until 
2012. He said he was pastor of a Church, he had a lot to give the community and 
wanted to rebuild his life.      
 
Mr Brown asked Reverend Adelasoye if he was aware the premises was within the 
Council’s Special Saturation Policy (Cumulative Impact zone) and asked why it had 
not been addressed in the application form.  Reverend Adelasoye said he had 
instructed a professional to make the application on his behalf.  Mr Brown reminded 

Page 2



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

27 SEPTEMBER 2018 
 

LSC. 3 
 

Reverend Adelasoye that he had signed the application form to confirm it was correct.  
Reverend Adelasoye said he intended to address the matter at this meeting.   
 
Councillor Patmore asked Reverend Adelasoye how he intended to help the street 
drinkers if he was selling alcohol from his premises.  Reverend Adelasoye said he 
wanted to start a business which would sell afro-caribbean food and drinks.  In order 
for the business to survive he said he needed the flexibility to sell alcohol eg 
champagne and wines for customers to take home with a meal.   
 
Councillor Patmore asked Reverend Adelasoye to clarify why he had used the term 
‘alleged offences’, when he had been convicted.  Reverend Adelasoye said he was 
not convicted on any evidence, and that he did not break the rules.   
 
Councillor Roberts asked Reverend Adelasoye if he had appealed the conviction.  
Reverend Adelasoye said the conviction stood and that it was an immigration matter 
which was still on going.   
 
Mr Brown explained that the convictions were relevant under the Licensing Act, 
Section 4, and the police were correct to raise an objection. He said the application is 
in the Cumulative Impact Zone and it is for the applicant to address this in the 
operating schedule on how they think the premises will not add to the existing 
problems in the area.    
 
In her summary, Kirstie Rolfe, Licensing Officer, said the Police stood by their 
objection in regard to Reverend Adelasoye’s convictions and that the premises is 
located within the Council’s Special Saturation (Cumulative Impact Zone) which 
Reverend Adelasoye was aware of when he signed the application form. 
 
Reverend Adelasoye said he wanted to sell afro-caribbean food with alcohol as part of 
his business and that he was happy to take on board any conditions.   
 
 

RESOLVED (unanimously) to REFUSE the licence. 
 
The reason for this decision was: 
 
Once again the applicant has not met the legal test required.   
 
He failed to show within his operating schedule that the granting of his 
application would not undermine the Licensing Objectives.   
 
He confirmed that he had read the Council’s Licensing Policy, he had 
undertaken Licensing training and understood the effects of a Cumulative 
Impact Zone.  However, his application did not mention this and neither 
did his oral submission. 
 
The applicant mentioned that he only needed to sell alcohol to make the 
business viable.  This does not fit the Licensing objectives. 
 

Page 3



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

27 SEPTEMBER 2018 
 

LSC. 4 
 

The Committee have no confidence that the applicant will uphold the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
The Committee have had regard to its Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State. 

 
 
39. ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
None.  
 
 
 
 

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 3.34 pm) 
 

Page 4



Licensing Review Procedures - 2015

Licensing Review Procedures
1. Introductions

 Chair introduce Members and Officers.  Invite applicant / Licence Holder / 
representatives to table.  Ask to introduce themselves.

 Chair explain procedure.  Ask if Parties received report and ready to proceed. 
 In the event that any Party to the hearing fails to attend Members consider whether to 

adjourn the hearing or to proceed in the Party’s absence.

2. Summary of report by Licensing Manager / Officer.

3. Applicant / Representative (for eg Environmental Health, Police, Trading Standards) 
submissions on the application / call any witnesses. 
Any Questions for Applicant / Representative 
 Statutory Consultees?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

4. Statutory Consultees (for eg Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health) submissions 
on the application.  
Any questions for Statutory Consultees from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Officers?
 Members?

5. The Licence Holder’s submission on the application.  
Any questions for Licence Holder from
 Applicant / Representative?
 Statutory Consultee?
 Officers?
 Members?

6. Do Members require any clarification from the Licensing Manager / Officer?
If clarification given, questions on clarification only from:
 Applicant / Representative?
 Licence holder?
 Statutory Consultees?
 Members?

7. Summaries (if required)
 Licensing Manager / Officer summing up 
 Statutory Consultees summing up 
 Licence Holder summing up
 Applicant/Representative summing up 

8. Decision Making
 Members retire to discuss the application, propose and second a recommendation and 

vote on this. 
 They may take legal advice from the Legal Advisor.  The Legal Advisor will advise the 

Parties of any legal advice given to the sub-committee.  No other person may retire with 
the Sub-committee.  

 The decision is announced by the Chair giving full reasons for the decision, together with 
any conditions, which are to be attached to the grant of the licence or the reasons for a 
refusal of the application. 

Page 5

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v29.0

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee

Date of Meeting: 24.01.2020.

Report Title: Review of premises licence. Ocean Spice, 43 White Rock, Hastings.

Report By: Mike Hepworth. Assistant Director. Environment and Place.

Purpose of Report

To consider an application to review the Premises Licence as a result of 
representations received.
Responsible Authorities.  Two.      

Recommendation(s)

1. Member’s instructions requested. 

Reasons for Recommendations

The Licensing Act 2003 requires a licensing sub-committee to consider such 
applications when appropriate representations have been made. The decision reached 
at the sub-committee can be subject to appeal at the Magistrates Court by any party to 
the hearing, who is aggrieved by the decision.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Report Template v29.0

 

Introduction

1.0 Background

      On 7th February 2005 the Licensing Act 2003 came into force for all local 
authorities, marking the practical commencement of the Government’s new liquor 
licensing regime.  

      On the 26th November 2019 Hastings Borough Council received an application for 
the review of an existing premises licence for  Ocean Spice, 43 White Rock, 
Hastings, TN34 1JL from HM Inspector of Immigration, Home Office, made under 
Section 51 the Licensing Act 2003. (The application for review and supporting 
papers is attached Appendix A.) 

      The premise was initially operating as The Smugglers PH when it transferred from 
the Magistrates Court system to the local authority in 2005. It was closed for a 
period of time and was then renamed initially as Spice Rock and since 10th 
December 2015 has become the Ocean Spice Restaurant. (Map of Location 
included within, Appendix B).

      In February 2019 it was transferred to the current operator Mr Siddiqur Rahman, 
22 Horntye Road, St Leonards on Sea, East Sussex who is also the designated 
premises supervisor (DPS) of the premise and has been so since 5.02.2010.

       The premise currently holds a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003, 
(Attached Appendix B), which covers the use of the premises for the ' On and Off 
Sales of the supply by retail of Alcohol, Live and Recorded Music, Late Night 
refreshment and other licensable activities. 

      It currently operates under different trading hours depending on the licensable 
activity and the day and time of the operation;

      The opening hours of the premises are;

      Monday to Saturday 10.00 to 02.30hrs and Sunday 11.00 to 02.30 hrs.

      The existing premises licence is attached. (Produced Appendix B). 

              
      

2.0 Application 

      The grounds for review made by HM Immigration service is under the licensing 
objective "Prevention of crime and disorder" I have considered the application and 
consider it valid and in line with the central government guidance issued on such 
matters. In his application for review, he comments about the history of the 
premises and breaches of immigration rules on employment of staff and highlights 
the Guidance issued under sec 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. This states that “for 
employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 

Page 8



Report Template v29.0

immigration status in the UK” the matter should be treated particularly seriously. 
As a result he is asking the licensing sub-committee to consider revocation of the 
premises licence.

      When submitting an application for a review under the Licensing Act 2003 the 
applicant is required to send copies of the review application to the other 
responsible authorities listed under the Act and a copy to the premises licence 
holder, this has been done.

      In addition, the licensing authority is required to place a copy of the notice on or 
close by the premises concerned and the public notice board situated at Council 
Offices, this has been done, in addition the review notification has been placed on 
the Council website. These notices must remain in place for 28 days to allow 
further representations to be made.

      An application for review cannot be considered by the Council's Licensing Sub- 
Committee until the 28 day representation period has elapsed, in this case that 
ended at midnight on the 24th December 2019.

3.0     Consultation 

      One further representation has been received during the consultation period, this 
representation is from Insp Lovell, Sussex Police and is made under the licensing 
objectives, Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Public Safety. The 
representation outlines a timeline of events at the premises and other associated 
matters. He completes his representation stating that Sussex Police have no 
hesitation in supporting the review brought by HM Immigration. (Included within 
bundle produced Appendix A).

4.0 Legal Considerations

      The Licensing Act 2003 is now the only process to licence and control premises for 
all forms of entertainment, late night refreshment and the sale of Alcohol.

      The review process is laid down in statute and allows for representations to be 
made by specified groups of people provided they are relevant to one or more of 
the licensing objectives listed in the Act and are not considered frivolous, vexatious 
or repetitive. 

      If a relevant representation is made by either a responsible authority or other party, 
a hearing must be held. 

      The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003.  This guidance is provided to Licensing Authorities to assist them in carrying 
out their functions.

      Hastings Borough Council has developed, published and reviewed its Statement of 
Licensing Policy as required by the Licensing Act 2003.  

      All members of the Licensing Committee have been supplied with copies of the 
Official Government guidance and the Hastings Borough Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy.

Page 9



Report Template v29.0

      Human rights considerations must be taken into account fully in balancing licensing 
issues, in particular, article 1 of the first protocol.  Article 1 relates to the protection 
of property and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions and property.  Holding a 
premises licence would be considered a possession.  These are qualified rights 
and can be deprived of “in the public interest”.  Interference is permissible if what is 
done, has its basis in law, and;

       Is necessary in a democratic society to fulfil a pressing need or pursue a legitimate 
aim;

       Is proportionate to the aims being pursued; and, 

       Is related to the prevention of crime; or, the protection of public order or health.

      The licence holder has a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against any 
decisions made by the licensing Sub-Committee with respect to this application for 
review. 

5.0 Options

      To modify the conditions of the licence.

      To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.

      To remove the designated premises supervisor.

      To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

      To revoke the licence.

      Members are reminded they must give written reasons for their decision.

Timetable of Next Steps

1. Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these:

Action Key milestone Due date 
(provisional)

Responsible

Licensing sub-
committee 

24.01.19. Committee 
administration

Wards Affected

Castle Ward

Page 10



Report Template v29.0

Implications

Relevant project tools applied? No

Have you checked this report for plain English and readability? Yes

Climate change implications considered? No

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) YES
Risk Management
Environmental Issues
Economic/Financial Implications
Human Rights Act YES
Organisational Consequences
Local People’s Views
Anti-Poverty

Additional Information

Appendix A. Application for review and supporting papers inc Police representation.
Appendix B. Existing premises licence and location plan.

 Contact
Bob Brown. Licensing Manager. 
bbrown@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 783249 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	 PROCEDURAL NOTE - Licensing Review
	6 Review of Premises licence. Ocean Spice, 43 White Rock, Hastings
	Enc. 1 for Review of Premises licence. Ocean Spice.
	Enc. 2 for Review of Premises licence. Ocean Spice.


